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I. General information:
1. General information:

- Name of company : Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
- Business Registration Certificate No.: 0400568767

- Charter capital : 50.000.000.000 VND

- Address : 145 Le Loi, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

- Phone number :(0236) 3889950 - (0236) 3889954

- Fax number :(0236) 3889957

- Website : Iseebooks.vn

- Securities code  : DAD

- Establishment and development process:

Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company was established on
the basis of a new establishment, with the founding shareholder being Vietnam Education
Publishing House and other shareholders, including employees of Da Nang Education
Publishing House.

Da Nang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (referred to as
"the Company") was established under Decision No. 311/QD-TCNS dated March 23, 2007,
issued by the Chairman of the Board of Vietnam Education Publishing House. The
company is an independent accounting unit, operating under Business Registration
Certificate No. 3203001382 dated April 4, 2007 of the Department of Planning and
Investment of Da Nang City, Enterprise Law, Company Charter and relevant
current legal regulations. Since its establishment, the Company has adjusted its
Business Registration Certificate 9 times and the most recent adjustment was on
January 24, 2025 under the business registration number 0400568767.

- Other events : None



2. Business lines and Locations of the business:

- Business lines:

* Organizing, linking publishing, printing and distributing all kinds of
books, other publications;

* Production of educational equipment, tools, stationery, student
notebooks and calendars of all kinds;

* Real estate services business; Business of leasing warehouse,
business premises, office;

» Construction of houses, Civil construction;

 Business of leasing services for warehouses, business premises, offices;

* Vocational training: Information technology, foreign languages;

* Wholesale books, newspapers, magazines, stationery.

- Locations of the business: Quang Binh, Quang Tri, Thua Thien Hue, Da Nang, Quang
Nam, Quang Ngai, Binh Pinh, Gia Lai, KomTum, Phu Yen, Khanh Hoa.

3. Information about the organizational structure, business organization and
management structure

a. Organizational structure

[P SR

b. Management structure:
+ The Board of Directors has five (05) members elected by the General

Meeting of Shareholders for a term from 2022 to 2027.

+ Board of Supervisors has three (03) members elected by the General
Meeting of Shareholders for a term from 2022 to 2027.

+ The Board of Management and Chief Accountant are elected by the
Company's Board of Directors for a term from 2022 to 2027. The Board of
Management consists of four members: 1 General Director, 2 Deputy General

Directors and Chief Accountant.



c. Subsidiaries, affiliated company:

Busi Charter .| Ownership
Item Address llls 1ness capital OV[JV_';?};Z)HP ratio  |Note
nes | qiynpy| (04 VND) %)
SUBSIDIARIES: None
AFFILIATED
Danang Printing 420 Le Duan, Produc.tic.)n .
and SerVice JSC Da. Nang. and prlntlng 1 1 2,53 20 A)
of books
Binh Dinh Book (219 Nguyen B d
and Equipment [Ty, Binh uy an 11,264 2,92 25,92%
1SC . sell books
Dinh.

4. Main objectives of the company

Operating under the model of a joint stock company, the Company's operational
objectives are to continuously accumulate and improve production capacity; market
expansion; ensuring increased corporate value, legitimate benefits of shareholders and
contributing to the implementation of the country's socio-economic development tasks.

a. The main objectives of the Company

- Developing the Company in a stable and sustainable manner must preserve
capital and bring benefits to shareholders while ensuring the life needs of employees.

b. Mid-term and long-term development strategy
- Stabilize the structure and management apparatus.

- Concentrate financial resources, continue to increase highly qualified personnel,
build a team of experienced authors, experts, and collaborators to organize and publish
new textbooks of Vietnam Education Publishing House and develop new types of
products according to market trends.

- Maintain high investment and expenses but still try to maintain profit and dividend
targets as planned.

- Revenue and profits achieved must ensure the benefits of employees, pay
dividends to shareholders and have accumulated resources for restructuring and
expansion in the following years.

- Continue to promote the application of information technology in management,
administration, production and business to improve labor efficiency, create new types
of products integrated with highly competitive E-learning materials, and prevent
pirated printing. ‘

- It is necessary to focus on building corporate image and brand, preserving the
environment, and fulfilling social responsibility.



- Continue to improve salary and bonus payment policies for employees to be
consistent with market mechanisms, linking benefits to labor productivity.

- Ensure stable living, mental health and development for employees.

¢. Sustainable development objectives (environmental, social and community) and

main programs related to the short-term and medium-term of the Company
- Still focusing on developing the Company's current key industries in depth.
- Prepare all financial and human resources.
- The Ccompany always focuses on healthy environmental protection.

- The company has for many -years fulfilled its responsibilities and duties to
society and the community; coordinated with local authorities to implement the
program to support the construction of charity houses for teachers' families in difficult
circumstances; sponsored the Vietnam Children's Fund, donated hundreds of gifts and
books to poor students who overcame difficulties, families in difficult circumstances
and supported other educational programs...

- Support free materials for lecturers.

5. Risks (risks that may affect production and business activities or the
achievement of the Company's objectives, including environmental risks, natural
- disasters, epidemics, etc.)

a. Economic risks

Important factors of the economy, incliuding inflation, credit growth, interest rates,
economic growth rate,... all have a direct or indirect impact on the Company's
operations and business results, especially the education policy that is always
innovated and reformed each year. In the context of negative signs in the world
economy, global growth has slowed down due to the US-initiated trade war that has
spread to many areas, dragging a series of major economies into a spiral of retaliatory
. tariffs, the Russia-Ukraine war and several conflicts around world continue to weigh
on economic activities. Although unfavorable international economic conditions affect
the supply chain, prices and other aspects, economic growth figures still show positive
signs, according to the General Statistics Office. In 2024, our country's GDP reached
7%, and tends to gradually increase every quarter.

With the positive domestic economic situation and additional assessment of risks
of fluctuations, the Company continues to monitor macroeconomic changes and
unusual factors to achieve the goals set by the General Meeting of Shareholders,
especially in the context of escalating inflation and increasingly serious geopolitical

disputes, greatly affecting the Vietnamese economy.



b. Legal risks

In order to limit legal issues and operate legally, the Company always complies
with current regulations. Therefore, the Company puts the law first in its management.
DAD is an enterprise operating in the field of production, services, and distribution of
educational products. The Company must complies with the provisions of Vietnamese
law such as: Law on Enterprise, Tax Law, Publishing Law, Education Law, Law on
Intellectual Property and related legal documents. The Company regularly works with
legal departments to update changes in working methods, thereby improving
processes; updating legal policies on business management and the fields in which the
Company is operating. In addition, with its listing on the Hanoi Stock Exchange, the
Company always complies with the provisions of the Law on Securities and related
sub-law documents. This requires the Company to ensure that legal documents are
updated and to understand current regulations to properly and quickly meet the
requirements of the Government and management agencies. Therefore, the Company
applies technology in customer management, workflow management, contract
management and management of the Company's legal document system to promptly
handle and limit risks from the law.

c. Environmental risks

According to assessments, the production process of DAD products does not cause
much negative impact on the environment. However, the main input materials in
DAD's production process are paper and printing ink, these are two types of materials
that require a large amount of chemicals that affect the environment to process,
thereby indirectly affecting the environment. In addition, during the production
process, a large amount of raw materials such as electricity, water, gasoline, oil are
also needed... With increasing demand, the need to use the above energy SOources is

gven greater.

Aware of environmental protection issues and aiming at the goal of sustainable
development, DAD prioritizes the use of materials from recycled products and applies

material saving measures.
d. Competitive risks

In an increasingly developed and modernized world, the commercialization of
education has become very important and an inevitable trend, increasingly focused on
and promoting fierce competition in the market. For that reason, DAD has been
competing with other businesses in the same industry in creating products such as
textbooks, reference books and teaching equipment suitable for teaching requirements.
In addition, the Company has realized that printing and production costs are essential



factors when providing textbooks and printed materials; at the same time, it also
emphasizes the integration of new technology and continuous updating to maintain
competitiveness.

In order to affirm the Company's position as a prestigious brand, the Company has
implemented appropriate policies and strategies. By combining forecasting and market
research, the Company will adjust the appropriate price for each customer segment
while still meeting product quality. This adjustment process requires the Company's
carefulness and decisiveness to ensure that both the Company and customers get the
desired benefits.

IL. Operational situation during the year

1. Business performance during the year

FY 2024 Rate of
No. Indicator Unit perform/
Plan Perform plan 2024
(%)
1 |[Total Revenue Bil VND 423 504,6 119%
2 |Profit before tax Bil VND 15 15,51 103%
3 |Dividends % At least 15% | At least 15% -

2. Organization and personnel

a. Board of Management and Chief accountant:

1. General Director

N

Position

Gender

Date of birth

Place of birth

Nationality

Cultural level
Professional qualifications
Number of shares held
Illegal behavior

. Deputy General Director

Gender

Date of birth

Place of birth

Nationality

Cultural level
Professional qualifications
Number of shares held
Illegal behavior

Nguyen Quang Dung

Vice Chairman, General

Danang  Education
Development JSC
Male

12/12/1979

Quang Nam

Vietnam

12/12

Bachelor of Economics
14.800 shares

None

Huynh Ngoc Bao
Nam

11/12/1979

Quang Ngai province
Vietnam

12/12

Bachelor of Economics
17.600 shares

None

Director of
Investment  and




3. Deputy General Director Nguyen Duy Nham
*  Gender Male

*  Date of birth 07/07/1973

*  Place of birth Hai Duong province
*  Nationality Vietnam

*  Cultural level 12/12

*  Professional qualifications Bachelor of Economics
“  Number of shares held 0 share

*  Illegal behavior None

4. Chief accountant Le Ngoc

*  Gender Female

»  Date of birth 30/05/1974

*  Place of birth Ha Long city

*  Nationality Vietnam

*  Cultural level 12/12

Professional qualifications
Number of shares held
Illegal behavior

Bachelor of Economics
18.000 shares
None

b. Changes in the Board of Management: None.
¢. Number of workers, employees:

Since its establishment, the Company has identified the human factor as an
important factor promoting the development of the Company. Therefore, along with
promoting production and business activities, the Company always  focuses on
building and regularly fostering professional knowledge for the Company's officers
and employees. Furthermore, the Company always takes care of all aspects of life and
spirit for employees, creating stimulating factors to increase labor productivity,
achieve high efficiency in business and complete planned targets.

Regarding organizational = structure, Danang Education Investment and

Development Joint Stock Company currently has:

+ Board of Directors, Board of Supervisor, Board of Management va 6
Professional Department (include: Administrative; Accounting - Finance;
Production - warehouse; School Library and Publishing Planning, Manuscript
Mining and Marketing).

+ Party Cell, Grassroots Trade Union, Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth Union
(operating with the Youth Union of Education Publishing House in Da Nang City)

+ Number of employees: 64 employees (7 masters, 36 bachelors, 21 colledges,
vocational high school, high school);

3. Investment situation and implementation of projects
a. Major investments:
- In 2024, the Company didn’t make major investments.

b. Affiliated companies:



(Summary of operations and financial situation of affiliated companie)

Unit: Billion VND.

Adaress | Remuein | Proft b
AFFILIATED COMPANY
?eart?gf fs"g‘ting and | 420 Le Duan, Da Nang, 49,89 2,9
giﬁp}?sggﬁgg‘ a8d | 519 Nguyen Lu, Binh Dinh. 69,01 0,88
4. Financial status
a. Financial status
Unit: Million VND
Indicator 2F0§3 21(;;{4 ch:{;’ges
Total assets 166.403 163.240 -1,9
Net revenue 439.810 500.006 13,7
Profit from operating activities 81.241 78.792 -3,0
Other profit | 365,1 -102,0 -127,9
Profit before tax 18.523 15.512 -16,3
Profit after tax 14.116 11.401 -19,2
Dividend payout ratio 49,5 61,3 23.8
b. Main financial indicators:
Indicator Unit FY 2023 FY 2024
1. Liquidity ratios |
+ Current ratio:
Current assets / Current liabilities times 207 212
+ Quick ratio: _
(Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities tmes 167 L7
2. Capital structure ratio
+ Debt/Total Assets ratio times 0,41 0,40
+ Debt/Owner’s Equity ratio times 0,70 0,68
3. Operation capability ratio
+ Inventory turnover (COGS/Average inventories) | turns 10,22 17,26




Indicator Unit FY 2023 FY 2024
+ Total asset turnover (Revenue/Total asset) . turns 2,64 3,06
4. Profitability ratio
+ Profit after tax / Sales % 3,21 2,28
+ Profit after tax / Owner’s Equity % 14,40 11,72
+ Profit after tax / Total Assets % 8,48 6,98
+ Profit from business activities/ Net revenue % 3,21 3,12

5. Shareholders structure, change in the owner’s equity

a. Shares:
Total issued shares 5.000.000
Outstanding shares 4.659.200
Common shares 4.659.200
Preferred shares : 0
Treasury shares 340.800

b. Shareholders structure:

shares
shares
shares
shares

shares

As of January 10, 2025, The Company has the following shareholder structure:

Shareholder Number of shares l}f,l/ti)o

STATE SHAREHOLDERS 2.075.000 41,50
DOMESTIC, include 1.311.796 26,24
+ Institutional: 0 0,00

- Major shareholders 0 0,00

- Other shareholders 0 0,00

+ Individual: 970.996 19,42

- Major shareholders 0 0,00

- Other shareholders 970.996 19,42

+ Treasury shares: 340.800 6,82
FOREIGN, include 1.613.204 32,26
+ Institutional: 1.223.900 24,47

- Major shareholders 877.600 17,54




Shareholder Number of shares ltf,l/(t) i)O
- Other shareholders 346.300 6,93
+ Individual: 389.304 7,79
- Major shareholders 0 0,00
- Other shareholders 389.304 7,79
TOTAL 5.000.000 100,00

c. Changes in Owner’s capital: None.
d. Treasury shares transactions:

Current treasury shares are 340.800 shares, no treasury shares were traded
during the year.

e. Other securities: None.

6. Environment and social report of the Company
6.1. Environmental impact:

Committed to fully implementing environmental protection measures in
production and business activities, limiting the use of products, raw materials and
materials with toxic ingredients. Using green raw materials and materials.

6.2. Raw materials management:

The Company always chooses to cooperate with suppliers that not only ensure
user-friendly product quality but also meet environmental standards. In addition, the
Company also focuses on preserving raw materials in warehouses, ensuring that all
criteria for the preservation process are met, avoiding loss and waste of raw materials.

6.3. Energy consumption:

- Effective use of all types of energy is one of the contents of sustainable
development. The Company has many policies and actions to ensure the
implementation of that goal.

- Organize periédic inspections and appraisals of machinery, equipment, and
means of transportation; Carry out maintenance and repair damage to achieve the best
performance for assets; replace outdated equipment that consumes a lot of energy but
is not highly effective.

- Propagate and remind internally: turn off lights and fans when going out, when
not needed; Turn on the air conditioner at a temperature not lower than 25°C.

- Completély replace incandescent light bulbs with energy-saving compact lights
in office areas, factories, and book warehouses.

- Respond to the Earth Hour movement.




6.4. Water consumption: ‘

The company is aware that water is a priceless but not endless reSource. The
company always appreciates the value of every drop of water, popularizes the
reasonable use to each employee, and contributes to the protection of the common
water resources of Vietnam and the world. The company has Checked the water system-
for leaks, quickly repaired the damage, and used water-saving equipment.

6.5. Compliance with environmental protection laws V

Implementing social responsibility will help small and medium-sized enterprises
develop sustainably through activities such as complying with laws on environmental
protection, pollution control, waste recycling, and saving resqurces... The Company is
committed to always complying with legal regulations on environmental protection.
Company employees actively participate in environmental movements organized by
the Company and local authorities.

6.6. Policies related to employees
+ Number of employees, average salary for employees
- Number of employees: 64 persons.
- Average salary for employees: 18 mﬂlion VND/month/person.
+ Labor policy aims to ensure the health, safety and welfare of employees

To ensure benefits for employees, the Company fully pays social insurance,
health insurance, and unemployment insurance for employees. In addition, to ensure
that employees have good health and can work with peace of mind, the Company also
organizes periodic medical examination and treatment for all employees.

+ Employee (training activities: The Company always focuses on building
effective human resource development policies to improve the quality of employees.
Therefore, every year, the Company organizes short-term-internal training courses to
ixﬁprove professional qualifications, update new technology and working processes for
each department and each operating block. In 2024, the Company participated in
professional training courses for employees to improve their qualifications and skills,
helping their work such as: Conference on training software for materials management
- printing - distribution and conference on training on book quality control process,
conference on training on editing and publishing skills, annual training on NXBGDVN
" educational equipment, training on occupational safety and hygiene, conference on
~ training on matérials - printing - distribution software, conference on training on trade
. union fihance, training and fostering of core staff in workers, civil servants, etc.

6.7. Report regarding responsibilities to the local community

In 2024, the Company has focused on social and chanty activities. as a corpmate
respon51b1111y Total budget for this act1V1ty is about 4, 326 b11110n VND.



6.8. Reports on green capital market activities under the guidance of The State
Securities Commission

The Company is committed to fully implementing environmental protection
measures in production and business activities.
IIL. Report and assessment of The Board of Management
1. Assessment of operating results

*Main financial indicators in 2024;

FY 2024 Rate of
No. Indicator Unit . perform/
Plan | Perform | Plan 2024
(%)

1 | Charter capital Bil VND 50 50 100
2 | Treasury shares capital -Bil VND | 3.4 3.4 100
3 | Outstanding shares capital - Bil VND 46,6 46,6 100
4 | Total Revenue Bil VND 423 504,6 119
5 | Profit before tax Bil VND 15 15,51 103
6 | Profit before tax / Charter capital ratio % 30 31,02 103
7 S;’;if;l;lblztt”?ée tax / Outstanding shares o 39 32,93 103
8 | Undistributed profit after tax Bil VND - 39,69 -
9 | Dividend payment % 15 15 -
10 | Debt collection ratio % 90 94 104

With determination to complete the business target plan assigned by the
General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, the Board of
Management has proposed many implementation plans, deployed the plan, and
responded promptly. By grasping opportunities and taking advantage of internal
strengths, in 2024, the Company has strived to create stable revenue and profit.
Specifically, the Company's total revenue reached VND 504,6 billion and profit
before tax recorded a value of VND 15,51 billion, achieving the plan set by the
General Meeting of Sharecholders.

2. Financial status

a. Assets

The Company's total assets in 2024 are equivalent to those in 2023. Receivables
in the year are VND 32,88 billion due to increased debt collection, ensuring capital for
business operations. Net revenue in 2024 increased by 14% compared to the previous

year.
b. Debt

Debt has had the following fluctuations: The Company's short-term debt at the
end of 2024 is 65.955 million VND, decreased 2.395 million VND (corresponding to a



decrease of 3,5% compared to the beginning of the year). Net revenue in 2024
increased by 14% compared to 2023. In 2024, there are still some overdue receivables,
the company has also taken measures to set aside provisions for overdue debts. The
Company does not have debts in foreign currencies, so it is not affected by differences
in exchange rates on the Company's production and business results.

3. Improvements in organizational structure, policies and management

Facing challenges in the general market situation, the Company's Board of
Management focuses on implementing improvement activities in organizational
structure, policy, and management in 2024 as follows: '

+ The company has improved the efficiency of inventory management; Reduce
the amount of finished products and goods that are stagnant and difficult to sell.

+ The company also sent working delegations to the provinces to introduce and
train teachers on the new textbook program, and promote DEIDCO-branded

publications to users.

+ The Company has created the best conditions for human resource
development. The Company promotes and appoints qualified and capable staff to the
Company's management apparatus.

4. Future development plan:

a. Quantity indicators

No. Indicator Unit Pl;(l)lzgy
1 | Publishing Topic 55
1.1 | Reprinted books Topic 22
1.2 | New printed books (including publishing links) Topic 33
2 | Printing and realeasing Publications | 27.944.120
2.1 | Workbook, textbook Publications 23.621.420
2.2 | Elective textbooks Publications 3.452.700
2.3 | Extensive textbooks, reference books, others... | Publications 870.000
b. Value indicators
No. Indicator Unit Plan FY 2025
1 |Total Revenue | Billion VND 425

2 |Profit before tax . Billion VND 13,5




No. Indicator Unit Plan FY 2025

3 |Profit before tax / Charter capital ratio % 27%

4 |Dividends % At least 15%

5. Explanation of The Board of Management for Auditor’s opinions:
Audit opinion fully accepted.
6. Assessment report related to environmental and social responsibilities of the
company
a. Assessment concerning the environmental indicators

The company is always conscious of its impact on the environment. The
company is always committed to:

* Develop a strict supply and materials management plan to avoid waste and
excess paper and ink during the printing process.

* Comply with laws and ensure hygiene criteria impact the Company's
environment.

* Strengthen control, monitoring and develop measures to prevent
environmental pollution.

* Encourage the Company's workers and employees to use environmentally
friendly and reusable products in the business process.

* Implement usage control and improve energy saving solutions, replace
fluorescent light bulbs with LED light bulbs to reduce electricity costs.

b. Assessment concerning the labor issues

Perfecting the reasonable labor organization to make the best use of current
resources. Organizing and operating the Company's apparatus according to the
Company's regulations: Internal regulations, Labor regulations, Collective labor
agreements,...

Consider annual salary increases for employees; Resolve employee benefits
according to the law, the Vietnam Education Publishing House and the Company's
internal regulations. Continue to improve salary regulations based on productivity to
ensure employees are encouraged to contribute more and receive more benefits.

Add qualified and sufficient expertise personnel to the manuscript mining
department to organize manuscripts according to the new programs.

c. Assessment concerning the corporate responsibility for the local
community
In addition to performing well the assigned tasks, the Company regularly cares

for and carries out social work, charity, and supports the education sector in the



assigned areas through donating books and school supplies to school libraries, granting
scholarships to students in difficult circumstances, and supporting the construction of
gratitude houses for teachers in difficult circumstances. The total value of social work,
charity work and support for the education sector in the central region in 2024 is about
4,326 billion VND.

IV. Assessment of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operations
1. Assessment of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operations

In 2024, Da Nang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company
received attention and direction from the Leadership of Vietnam Education Publishing
House, the Leadership of Da Nang Education Publishing House; The combination and
support of Vietnam Education Publishing House’s member, With the solidarity,
creativity and efforts of the leadership and staff, the Company has continued to
overcome difficulties, promoted resources and taken appropriate steps: Successfully
completed political tasks; Maintained and increased the number of issues, revenue,
dividends and improved the material and spiritual life of employees; Maintained
stability and promoted the effective use of facilities; Strengthen the reputation of DAD
shares listed on the stock exchange.

In regular and irregular meetings, the BOD has ciosely inspected and supervised the
activities of the Board of Management. The General Director also regularly and
proactively reports on the operating situation and difficulties in the process of

operating and managing the Company.

The company is always aware of its impact on the environment. Encourage workers
and employees of the Company to use environmentally friendly and reusable products

in the business process.

a. Business activities in 2024

- Business performance results in 2024 are as follows:

FY 2024 Rate of
No. Indicator Unit pian | Perform Ifl‘:;f"z‘;)“z‘i
(%)
1 |Total Revenue Billion VND 423 504,6 119
2 |Profit before tax Billion VND 15 15,51 103
3 |Dividends % 15% 15% -

- Dividends payment
In 2024, the company has completed the payment of 20% dividend for 2023 and
the BOD has approved the plan to advance the 2024 dividend payment at a rate of



15%.

2. BOD' assessment of the performance of the Board of Management

Performing the functions, duties and rights according to the Company Charter,
the Operating Regulations and the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the BOD has worked closely with the Board of Management (BOM) to promptly make
flexible decisions to ensure the Company's goal of safe and sustainable development.
The BOD monitors, supervises and supports the BOM in overcoming difficulties and
promoting the personal responsibilities of BOD’s members. With that support and
close supervision, major issues and complex operations under the authority of the
Board of Directors are resolved quickly and effectively. The BOD also pays attention
to the coordination with the Board of Supervisor (BOS) in inspection and supervision.
The BOS’s monitoring reports are carefully analyzed and directed by the BOD to take
remedial measures.

In general, the BOM has organized and implemented production and business
activities according to the direction of the Board of Directors and the resolutions of the
General Meeting of Shareholders. During the implementation process, the BOM
regularly reported to the Board of Directors on the production and business
situation as well as the financial situation and other activities of the Company to
provide timely guidance.

To promote the achievements achieved in recent times, the BOM needs to make
more efforts in managing production activities, ensuring the best benefits for

shareholders.
3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

a. Orientation of business tasks and goals in 2024 for the Company's Board of

Management

ePromote the advantages and results achieved in 2024 and honestly
acknowledge the weaknesses and shortcomings to overcome in 2025 to improve the
capacity and work efficiency of each employee, each department and the Company.
Seriously implement the work progress by month and quarter and ensure the

completion of the project plan according to plan.

¢ Deploy the development of a team of authors and project plans according to
the newly issued General Education Program, Strengthen cooperation with the
Departments of Education and Training of the provinces to search for and propose
book topics in the localities. Coordinate with the Departments of Education and



Training to update, edit contents according to information requested by the
Department.

e Implement the supply of materials according to the regulations of Vietnam
Education Publishing House and strengthen the inspection of warehoused books to
ensure the correct quality of supply to the market; Strengthen measures to improve
the quality of management of book and material warehouses to avoid shortages.
Work with material suppliers, printers, and slitting workshops on warehousing
plans in each stage to ensure enough materials to meet the needs of printing for
processing and bidding.

* Assess and forecast market demand - printing - distribution to ensure the safest
inventories; Closely associated with the professional direction of leaders and
specialized departments of the Departments of Education and Training in the Central
region; Organize the distribution of books to schools through the system; There are
measures to improve the results of publishing workbooks and elective books in

provinces with a low average rate.

* Diversify the company's products through joint distribution of products of

member units of Vietnam Education Publishing House.

» Organize workshops to introduce and train the use of textbooks for classes of
the Vietnam Education Publishing House according to the 2018 General Education
Program as assigned by the Vietnam Education Publishing House, specifically:
Organize workshops to introduce textbooks in 06 provinces and cities including:
Quang Binh, Quang Tri, Thua Thien Hue, Da Nang, Quang Nam, Quang Ngai. In
particular, workshops to introduce English textbooks are organized in all 11

provinces in the Central Highlands region.

e Organize the compilation of Russian Textbooks: urge authors to complete

manuscripts for grades 5, 7, 8, 9 according to the set schedule.
b. Board of Directors' action plans for 2025

e Direct the Board of Management to develop plans and specific solutions to
ensure the completion of the targets set by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. '

e Strengthen the management and supervision of the activities of the Board of

Management and the Company's supporting apparatus



* Organize the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, propose and
submit issues that fall within the decision-making authority of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

* Organize regular and extraordinary meetings to discuss, monitor and approve
reports on the Company's performance, to promptly and effectively direct the
implementation of Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board
of Directors.

¢ Continue to review, supplement and adjust the Company's regulations,
processes and regulations in accordance with the situation of production and business

operations.

V. Corporate governance
1. Board of Directors
a. List of the Board of Directors (At December 31, 2024):

Board of Directors’ . Ownership | Position at other
No. Position . o .
members ratio (%) companies
I | Dang Thanh Hai Chairman 0
Vice Chairman —
2 | Nguyen Quang Dung General Directors 0,30
Director of Da
3 | Ong Thua Phu Member 0 Nang Education
Publishing House
Chairman of
4 | Nguyen Le Van Member - 0 NVN Vietnam
JSC
5 | Huynh Ngoc Bao Member 0
Total 0,3
b. Subcommittees of the Board of Directors: None.
¢. Activities of the Board of Directors:
Board of Directors’ Tzfag?ifgm Nm;lfber Reasons
oard of Director " _
. Rate for
No. members Position members | meetings absence
of the BOD | attended
1 | Mr. Dang Thanh Hai | Chairman | 31/03/2022 6/6 100%
o | Mr NeuyenQuang | Vice | 3953000 | 6/6 | 100%
Dung Chairman




The date of | Number Reasons
No. Board of Directors Position starting of Rate for
members members | meetings b
of the BOD | attended absence
3 | Mr. Ong Thua Phu Member | 31/03/2022 6/6 100%
4 | Mr. Nguyen Le Van | Member | 31/03/2022 6/6 100%
5| n My NEOC yomber | 240032023 | 66 | 100%

List of changes in Board of Directors’s members during the year: None.

During the year, the BOD issued the following Resolutions and Decisions:

No. | Resolution No. Date Content
- Agree to make loans and other credit needs at
1 | 04/NQ-DEIDCO | 07/01/2024 | Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Industry and Trade - North Da Nang Branch
- Agree to maké loans and other credit needs at
2 | 05/NQ-DEIDCO | 07/01/2024 | Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam - Da Nang Branch
- Approval of the record date and the date for the
3 07/NQ-HPQT | 05/03/2024 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
18/NQ-HDPQT- - Approval of additional dividend payment for
4 DEIDCO 09/05/2024 2033
5 20/NQ-HPQT - Approval of interim cash dividend payment

19/12/2024

for 2024

2. Board of Supervisors:
a. List of the Board of Supervisors (At December 31, 2024)

The date of Voting Other
No. | Members of the BOS Position mZ::llll;tei:sg of ow!ﬁle“:‘rs:lip os\?vcnl:::st;ﬁi)
the BOS ratio ratio
1 | Mr. Tran Cong Thanh Head 31/03/2022 0 0
2 | Mr. Huynh Thanh Long | Member | 31/03/2022 0 0
3 | Mr.Pham Minh Nhat | Member | 31/03/2022 0 0

b. Activities of the Board of Supervisors




Meetings of the Board of Supervisors:

No. Members of the Position Number of Attendance | Reasons
BOS meetings attended rate for absence
1 | Tran Cong Thanh Head | 6/6 100% -
2 | Huynh Thanh Long | Member 6/6 100% -
3 | Pham Minh Nhat Member 6/6 100% -

3. Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the BOD, the BOM, and the BOS

a. Salary, bonus, remuneration, benefits:

NO. POSITION REMUNERATION
1 | Chairman 4.000.000 VND/month
2 Vice Chairman 3.000.000 VND/month
3 Member of the BOD 2.000.000 VND/month
4 Head of the BOS 1.500.000 VND/month
5 Member of the BOS 500.000 VND/month
6 Secretary of the BOD 1.000.000 VND/month

b. Share transactions by internal shareholders:
None

c. Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders:

Purchase of goods Year 2024 Year 2023
Education Publishing House in Da Nang City 2T4,982,787,855 238,624,445,448
Book and Educational Equipment JSC of Ho Chi Mink City 3,744,2'17,661 5,467,372,846
Ha Noi Education Publishing Services JSC 150,000,000 1,169,695,248
Quang Nam Printing - Distribution of Books and School Equipment Ji 1,444,326,614 2,318,014,743
Educational Book JSC in Da Nang City 672,903,300 2,151,174,736
Education Publishing and Tnvestment I8¢ 302,063,580 376,027,579
Educational Book JSC in Ha Noi City 5,609,833,5060 3,837,278,500
Ha Noi Education Development and Investment JSC 37,786,367 471 30,949 768,436
Phuong Nam Education Tnvestment and Development JSC 11,469,894,569 11,351,017,244
Central Books and Educational Equipment ISC 56,435,730 56,435,730
Binh Dinh Book and Equipment JSC 1,038,729,275 -
Sale of goods Year 2024 Year 2023
Binh Dinh Book and Bauipment JSC 9,208,761,877 7,507,052,070
Quang Nam Printing - Distribution of Books and Schoel Equipment J¢ 2,918,237 -
Quang Trl Book and School BEquipment JSC 29,550,345,801 32,404,530,152
Educational Book JSC in Da Nang City 357,164,760 514,086,248
Educational Book JSC in Fia Noi City 999,189,716 105,145,267
Ha Noi Education Development and Investment JSC 1,672,356,497 815,226,370
Phiong MNawm Education nvestment and Development JSC 1,589,330,285 1,417,568,307
Central Books and Educational Equipment ISC 898,222,015 1,050,563,902



d. Assessing the implementation of regulations on corporate governance:

Has operated in accordance with the Company's laws and governance regulations

VL. Financial Statement

Independent Auditor: AAC Auditing and Accounting Co., Ltd
Address: Lot 78-80, 30-4 Street, Hai Chau district, Da Nang city.
1. Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Danang Education
Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company”) which were prepare on 10/03/2025 from page 4 to page 30 including:
Balance Sheet as of 31/12/2024, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement for the fiscal
year then ended and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility of the Board of General Direétors

The Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation, true and fair
presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and relevant
statutory requirements for the internal control as the Company’s Board of General
Directors determines necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the

Financial Statements to be free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.
Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical standards and
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of

General Directors, as well as evaluating the overall



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the Financial Statements referred to above, give a true and fair
view, in all material respects, the financial position as of 31 December 2024 of the
Company, as well as its financial performance and its cash flows for the fiscal year
-then ended, in comformity with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and relevant statutory requirements on the preparation
and presentation of the Financial Statements.

2. Audited Financial Statement
(Appendix of The 2024 Audited Financial Statement is attached)

Legal representative

'DIRECTOR el
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The Management of Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company presents this
report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31/12/2024.

Overview

Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (the “Company”) was incorporated
under Decision No. 311/QD-TCNS dated 23/03/2007 issued by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Viet Nam Education Publishing House. The Company is an independent accounting entity, operating in
compliance with the Enterprise Law, its Charter, and other relevant regulations. Since its establishment, the
Company has amended the Enterprise Registration Certificate 9 times, most recently on 24/01/2025, with
the enterprise code 0400568767.

The Company has registered for trading common shares on the Hanoi Stock Exchange pursuant to Decision
No. 467/QP — SGDHN dated 13/08/2009 issued by the Hanoi Stock Exchange, with the ticker symbol
DAD. The official trading date was 19/08/2009. :

Charter capital: VND50,000,000,000.

Head office

e Address: 145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

o Tel: (0236) 3889954

e Tax: (0236) 3889957

e Website: www.iseebooks.vnt
Operating activities

e Wholesale of books, newspapers, magazines and stationery;
e Provision of real estate services. Leasing of warehouses, commercial spaces, and offices;

e Organization of cooperative publishing, printing, and distribution of supplementary textbooks and
other publications;

e Manufacture: Educational equipment, stationery, student notebooks, and calendars.
Employees

As at 31/12/2024, the Company had 65 employees, including 9 managing officers.

Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, Management, and Chief Accountant during the year
and up to the reporting date are as follows: - '

Board of Directors

e Mr. Dang Thanh Hai Chairman Reappointed on 31/03/2022
e  Mr. Nguyen Quang Dung Member Reappointed on 31/03/2022
e Mr. Ong Thua Phu Member Appointed on 31/03/2022

e Mr. Nguyen Le Van Member Reappointed on 31/03/2022
e Mr. Huynh Ngoc Bao | Member Appointed on 24/03/2023

Page 1
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Supervisory Board

e Mr. Tran Cong Thanh Chief Supervisor Appointed on 31/03/2022
e Mr. Huynh Thanh Long Supervisor Appointed on 31/03/2022
e Mr. Pham Minh Nhat Supervisor Appointed on 31/03/2022

Management and Chief Accountant

Mr. Nguyen Quang Dung

General Director

Appointed on 20/05/2017

e  Mr. Huynh Ngoc Bao Deputy General Director Appointed on 26/03/2020
e Mr. Nguyen Duy Nham Deputy General Director Appointed on 01/09/2022
e Ms. Le Ngoc Chief Accountant Appointed on 20/05/2017

Independent auditor

These financial statements were audited by AAC Auditing and Accounting Co., Ltd (Head office: Lot 78 —
80, Street 30/4, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City; Tel: (84) 0236.3655886; Fax: (84) 0236.3655887;
Website: www.aac.com.vn; Email: aac@dng.von.vn).

Management's statement of responsibility in respect of the financial statements

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements on the basis of:

e Complying with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and
other relevant regulations;

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently;
e Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
e Preparing the financial statements on the going concern basis.

o Responsibility for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Members of the Company’s Management hereby confirm that the accompanying financial statements,
including the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of cash flows, and the notes thereto, give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31/ 12/2024, and of the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and the statutory requirements relevant to the

2
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1Y,

General Director
Da Nang, 10 March 2025
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ARC AUDITING AND ACCOUNTING CO., LTD

AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF PRIMEGLOBAL

AUDITING - ACCOUNTING - FINANCE SPECIALITY

Head Office: Lot 78 - 80, April 30th Street, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

Tel: +84 (236) 3 655 886; Fax: +84 (236) 3 655 887, Email: aac@dng.vnn.vn; Website: hitp://www.aac.com.vn

No. 218/2025/BCKT-AAC
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The Shareholders, Board of Directors, and Management
Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

We have audited the financial statements prepared on 10/03/2025 of Danang Education Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company (the “Company”) as set out on pages 4 to 30, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31/12/2024, the income statement and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and the notes thereto.

Management’s Responsibility

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
System, and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements,
and for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31/12/2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in

“ce with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and the
eJyirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

. i #hu Hien — Deputy General Director Nguyen Thi Nhat Oanh - Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration Certificate Audit Practicing Registration Certificate
No. 0753-2023-010-1 No. 4031-2022-010-1

Da Nang, 10 March 2025

m Branch in Ho Chi Minh City m Branch in Ha Noi Page 3
47 - 49 Hoang Sa St. (3th Floor, Hoang Dan Building), Dist. 1, HCM City 09 Duy Tan St., (6th Floor, Viet A Building), Cau Giay Dist., Ha Noi
Tel: +84 (28) 3910 2235; Fax: +84 (28) 3910 2349 Tel: +84 (24) 3224 2403; Fax: +84 (24) 3224 2402



DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

Form B 01 - DN
BALANCE SHEET Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT - BIC
As at 31 December 2024 dated 22/12/2014 by the Ministry of Finance
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
ASSETS Code Note VND VND
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 139,846,226,690 141,313,121,479
1. Cash and cash equivalents 110 5 68,203,733,540 53,762,116,091
1. Cash 111 2,203,733,540 6,662,116,091
2. Cash equivalents 112 66,000,000,000 47,100,000,000
1I. Short-term financial investments 120 16,083,600,000 19,116,600,000
1. 'Trading securities 121 6a 4,237,145,000 4,237,145,000
2. Provision for devaluation of trading securities 122 6a (153,545,000) (120,545,000)
3. Held-to-maturity investments 123 12,000,000,060 15,000,000,000
II1. Short-term receivables 130 32,883,078,722 39,384,681,573
1. Short-term trade receivables 131 7a 31,306,147,283 37,416,694,825
2. Short-term prepayments to suppliers 132 8 1,430,270,604 1,285,669,504
3. Other short-term receivables 136 9 1,138,239,602 1,912,380,881
4. Provision for doubtful (short-term) debts 137 10 (991,578,767) (1,230,063,637)
1V. Inventories 140 11 21,697,129,493 27,107,143,181
1. Inventories 141 35,279,601,212 39,741,287,598
2. Provision for decline in value of inventories 149 (13,582,471,719) (12,634,144,417)
V. Other current assets 150 978,684,935 1,942,580,634
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 12a 978,684,935 1,942,580,634
2. Deductible value-added tax 152 - -
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 23,394,182,594 25,089,800,870
I. Long-term receivables 210 - -
1I. Fixed assets 220 16,305,939,826 18,053,854,186
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 13 8,476,775,826 10,177,338,186
- Cost 222 22,202,999,597 22,202,999,597
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (13,726,223,771) (12,025,661,411)
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 14 7,829,164,000 7,876,516,000
- Cost 228 8,164,999,000 8,164,999,000
- Accumulated amortization 229 (335,835,000 (288,483,000)
IIL. Investment properties 230 - -
IV. Non-current assets in progress 240 - -
V. Long-term financial investments 250 6,799,500,000 6,799,500,000
1. Investments in associates and joint ventures 252 6b 5,449,500,000 5,449,500,000
2. Equity investments in other entities 253 6b 1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
3. Provision for long-term financial investments 254 - -
V1. Other non-current assets 260 288,742,768 236,446,684
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261  12b 288,742,768 236,446,684
2. Other non-current assets 268 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 270 163,240,409,284 _ 166,402,922,349
The notes on pages 8 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements Page 4



DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

BALANCE SHEET (cont'd)
As at 31 December 2024

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
RESOURCES Code Note VND VND
C. LIABILITIES 300 65,954,762,265 68,349,328,053
I. Current liabilities 310 65,954,762,265 68,349,328,053
1. Short-term trade payables 311 15a 26,234,871,552 28,329,346,481
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 16 1,458,588,466 565,406,489
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State 313 17 1,083,585,915 1,583,113,583
4. Payables to employees : 314 5,315,436,907 6,679,945,513
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 18 30,914,155,160 30,260,971,870
6. Other short-term payables 319 19 17,839,650 25,940,869
7. Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities 320 20 - -
8. Reward and welfare fund 322 930,284,615 904,603,248
II. Non-current liabilities 330 - -
D. EQUITY 400 97,285,647,019 98,053,594,296
I. Owners' equity 410 97,285,647,019 98,053,594,296
1. Share capital 411 21 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
- Common shares with voting rights 411a 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
- Preferred shares 411b - -
2. Treasury shares 415 21 (2,907,360,967) (2,907,360,967)
3. Development and investment fund 418 21 10,499,596.,414 9,929,566,232
4, Undistributed profit after tax 421 21 39,693,411,572 41,031,389,031
- Undistributed profit up to prior year-end - 421a 31,712,989,031 31,150,231,840
- Undistributed profit for the current year 421b 7,.980,422,541 9,881,157,191
II. Other resources and funds 430 - -
440 163,240,409,284 166,402,922,349

General Director

Da Nang, 10 March 2025

Le Ngoc
Chief Accountant

Le Thi Dieu Hien

Preparer

The notes on pages 8 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31/12/2024

Form B 02 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT - BIC
dated 22/12/2014 by the Ministry of Finance

Year 2024 Year 2023
ITEMS Code Note VND VND
1. Revenue from sales and service provision 01 22 515,447,587,688 472,121,629,007
2. Revenue deductions 02 23 15,441,715,752 32,311,744,546
3. Net revenue from sales and service provision 10 500,005,871,936 439,809,884,461
4, Cost of goods sold 11 24 421,213,417,768 358,569,079,061
5. Gross profit from sales and service provision 20 78,792,454,168 81,240,805,400
6. Financial income 21 25 4,568,482,727 2,668,073,202
Financial expenses 22 26 1,293,849,627 1,473,351,352
Including: Interest expenses 23 440,180,450 374,976,134
Selling expenses 25 27 45,033,499,096 40,149,696,145
. Administrative expenses 26 28 21,419,712,497 24,127,564,351
10. Operating profit 30 15,613,875,675 18,158,266,754
11. Other income 31 29 3,150,350 365,055,001
12. Other expenses 32 30 105,129,498 -
13. Other profit 40 (101,979,148) 365,055,001
14. Accounting profit before tax 50 15,511,896,527 18,523,321,755
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51 31 4,111,292,898 4,407,382,912
16. Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 - -
17. Profit after tax 60 11,400,603,629 14,115,938,843
18. Basic earnings per share 70 32 1,835 2,272
Diluted earnings per share 71 32 1,835 2,272
/
- S
/
Le Ngoc Le Thi Dieu Hien
Chief Accountant Preparer
Da Nang, 10 March 2025
The notes on pages 8 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements Page 6



- DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
— 145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

Form B 03 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT - BTC
dated 22/12/2014 by the Ministry of Finance

L STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
- For the year ended 31/12/2024

Year 2023

. Year 2024
— ITEMS Code Note VND VND
— I. Cash flows from operating activities
- 1. Cash receipts from sales, service provision and other income 01 422,904,750,207 408,560,464,659
— 2. Cash paid to suppliers 02 (372,785,397,591) (368,910,657,627)
- 3. Cash paid to employees 03 (17,783,258,977) (16,672,869,123)
~ 4, Loan interest paid 04 18726 (440,180,450) (374.976,134)
o 5. Cash paid for corporate income tax 05 17 (4,292,776,680) (4,662,043,875)
- 6. Other cash receipts from operating activities 06 - 830,634,632 629,972,829
B 7. Other payments for operating activities 07 (9,637,170,258) (9,960,887,101)
'— Net cash from operating activities 20 18,796,600,883 8,609,003,628
3 Il Cash flows from investing activities
. 1. Purchase and construction of fixed assets and other non-current 21 - (646,612,066)
- assets
. 2. Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other non-current 22 - 365,000,000
assets
— 3. Cash paid for loans, acquisition of debt instruments 23 6b (12,000,000,000) (15,000,000,000)
4. Recovery of loans, re-sales of debt instruments 24 6b 15,000,000,000 11,000,000,000
—_ 5. Loan interest, dividends, and profits received 27 9,25 1,963,416,566 2,513,242,330
: Net cash from investing activities . 30 4,963,416,566 (1,768,369,736)
et 1. - Cash flows from financing activities
— 1. Proceeds from stock issuance, capital contribution 31 - -
‘ 2. Dividends, profits paid to owners 36 2le (9,318,400,000) (6,988,800,000)
— Net cash from financing activities 40 {9,318,400,000) (6,988,800,000)
- Net cash flows for the year 50 _ 14,441,617,449 (148,166,108)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 60 5 53,762,116,091 53,910,282,199
o Impacts of exchange rate fluctuations 61 - -
ash and cash equivalentsaf the end of the year 70 5 68,203,733,540 53,762,116,091
- /.M
"ﬁ (_///‘""
Le Ngoc Le Thi Dieu Hien
: General Director Chief Accountant Preparer
"” Da Nang, 10 March 2025
f_ﬁ The notes on pages 8 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements Page 7



DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024
Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT — BIC

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction dated 22/12/2014 by the Ministry of Finance

with the accompanying financial statements)
1. Nature of operations
1.1. Overview

Danang Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (the “Company”) was
incorporated under Decision No. 311/QD-TCNS dated 23/03/2007 issued by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Viet Nam Education Publishing House. The Company is an independent
accounting entity, operating in compliance with the Enterprise Law, its Charter, and other relevant
regulations. Since its establishment, the Company has amended the Enterprise Registration Certificate
9 times, most recently on 24/01/2025, with the enterprise code 0400568767.

The Company has registered for trading common shares on the Hanoi Stock Exchange pursuant to
Decision No. 467/QD — SGDHN dated 13/08/2009 issued by the Hanoi Stock Exchange, with the
ticker symbol DAD. The official trading date was 19/08/2009.

1.2. Principal scope of business: Printing and distribution of books.

1.3. Operating activities

e Wholesale of books, newspapers, magazines and stationery;
e Provision of real estate services. Leasing of warehouses, commercial spaces, and offices;

e Organization of cooperative publishing, printing, and distribution of supplementary textbooks and
other publications;

e Manufacture of other articles of paper and paperboard n.e.c. Details: Manufacture: Educational
equipment, stationery, student notebooks, and calendars.

1.4. Enterprise structure

As at 31/12/2024, the Company had two associate companies:

e Danang Printing and Service Joint Stock Company;
e Binh Dinh Book and Equipment Joint Stock Company.

2. Accounting period, currency used in accounting -

The Company’s annual accounting period starts on 01 January and ends on 31 December.

Financial statements and accounting transactions are expressed in Vietnamese Dong (VND).

3. Applied accounting standards and accounting system

The Company adopts Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
System as guided in Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22/12/2014 and Circular No. 53/2016/1T-
BTC dated 21/3/2016 providing amendments and supplements to certain articles of Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC promulgated by the Ministry of Finance.

Page 8



- DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—_ 145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

o NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)
4. Summary of significant accounting policies
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

__ Cash includes cash on hand and bank demand deposits.

All short-term investments which are collectible or mature of 3 months or less as from purchasing
date, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value at reporting date shall be recognized as cash equivalents.

4.2 Financial investments
Trading securities

Trading securities are securities held for business purposes.

Trading securities are initially recognized at cost, comprising buying prices plus (+) buying costs (if
any) such as brokerage fees, transaction fees, information provision fees, taxes, and bank charges.
Dividends and profits earned before the investment date shall be recorded as a decrease in value of
investment.

— After initial recognition, trading securities are determined at cost less provision for devaluation of
trading securities. At the end of the fiscal year, if the market prices of trading securities devalue
— against their cost, the provisions for devaluation shall be made.

— Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are term deposits (including treasury bills, promissory notes).

—_ Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at book value upon revaluation. Provision for loss of held-
' to-maturity investments shall be recorded as a decrease directly in the book value of investments.

In case where held-to-maturity investments are monetary items denominated in foreign currencies,
they are revaluated using the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Company regularly
conducts transactions at the time of the financial statements.

Investments in associates and long-term equity investments in other companies

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is
— the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the associate but not control

“ or joint control over those policies. An entity is considered as an associate if the Company holds
— (directly or indirectly) from 20% to under 50% voting shares of the entity.

Long-term equity investments in other companies are investments which the Company has no power to
control or joint control, no significant influence over the investees.

. Investments in associates and long-term equity investments in other companies are stated at cost less
provision. Dividends and profits received in money or non-monetary asset for the period before the
— investment date shall be recorded as a decrease in value of investment.

Provision

Provision for investments in associates is made if these investments are impaired or the investees
suffer losses leading to the irrecoverability of the Company’s investments. Provision for long-term
equity investments in other companies is made as follows:

e If an investment in listed shares or the fair value of the investment is determined reliably, the
provision shall be made based on the market value of the shares;
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

4.3

4.4

4.5

o If the market value of the shares is not identifiable, the provision shall be made based on the loss
reported in the financial statements of the investee.

With regards to the investees who are required to prepare the consolidated financial statements, the
provision is made based on the consolidated financial statements. For other cases, the provision is
made based on the financial statements of the investees.

Receivables

Receivables include trade receivables and other receivables:

e Trade receivables are trade-related amounts arising from trading activities between the Company
and its customers;

e Other receivables include non-trade amounts which are not related to trading activities, intra-
company transactions.

Receivables are recorded at cost less provision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts
represents the estimated loss amounts at the balance sheet date for overdue receivables which the
Company has claimed many times but still has not collected yet or which have not been overdue but
the debtor has been in the state of insolvency, doing dissolution procedures, missing or running away.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Value of inventories is calculated using the weighted average method and accounted for using the
perpetual method with cost determined as follows sau:

e Materials, goods: Cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the inventories to their present location and condition;

e Finished products: Cost comprises cost of direct materials and labor plus attributable overhead
based on the normal level of activities.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completing the products
and the estimated costs needed for their consumption.

Provision for decline in value of inventories is made for each kind of inventories when the net
realizable value of that kind of inventories is less than cost.

Tangible fixed assets
Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of tangible assets comprises their purchase price and all the costs incurred by the Company
to acquire those assets as of the time of putting such assets into the ready-for-use state. The costs
incurred after the initial recognition of tangible fixed asset shall be recorded as increase in their
historical cost if these costs are certain to augment future economic benefits obtained from the use of
those assets. Those incurred costs which fail to meet this requirement must be recognized as
production and business expenses in the period.

Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The depreciation rate is
determined based on cost and estimated useful life. The depreciation period is in conformity with
Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25/04/2013 by the Ministry of Finance. Details are as follows:
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

Kinds of assets Depreciation period (years)
Buildings, architectures 6-25

Motor vehicles, transmission equipment 6

Office equipment 3

4.6 Intangible fixed assets

Cost

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost of intangible fixed assets comprises all costs incurred by the Company to acquire those
assets as of the time of putting such assets into the ready-for-use state.

Land use rights

Intangible fixed assets are land use rights including:

e " Land use rights allocated by the State with a land use fee or acquired through legal transfer
(including definite and indefinite land use rights);

e Prepaid land rent (either paid for the entire lease term or in advance for multiple years, with at
Jeast five years remaining) under a land lease contract signed before effective date of the Land
Act 2003 and being granted with certificate of land use right by the competent authority.

The cost of land use rights includes all directly attributable costs incurred to obtain legal land use
rights.

Amortization

Intangible fixed assets being land use rights with indefinite term are not amortized.

Other intangible fixed assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The amortization period in conformity with Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25/04/2013 by the

Ministry of Finance.

The amortization period for intangible fixed assets at the Company is as follows:
Asset title Amortization period (years)
Website 5

4.7 Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses. These are expenditures
that have been incurred but related to the operations of many accounting periods. The Company’s
primary prepayments are as follows.

e Prepaid land rent for the entire lease term and related costs, allocated using the straight-line
method over the lease term;

e Tools and equipment put into use, allocated using the straight-line method over 12 months;

e Other prepaid expenses: The Company selects appropriate method and criteria of allocation over
the period in which economic benefits are expected to be received based on the nature and extent
of the prepaid expenses.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

4.8

4.9

Payables

Payables include trade payables and other payables:

e Trade payables are trade-related amounts, arising from trading activities between the Company
and its suppliers.

e Other payables are non-trade amounts, which are not related to trading activities, intra-company
transactions.

Payables are recognized at cost and reported as short-term or long-term payables based on the
remaining terms at the balance sheet date.

Payables are monitored according to their creditors, principal terms, remaining terms and original
currencies.

Accrued expenses

Accruals are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future related to accrued interests, and goods
and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.10 Unearned revenue

4.11

4.12

Unearned revenue of the Company consists of amounts received in advance for one or multiple
accounting periods for services provided to customers, which are allocated over the periods for which
the Company has received the advance payment.

Loans and finance lease liabilities

Loans and finance lease liabilities are recorded at cost and classified into current and non-current
liabilities based on the remaining terms at the balance sheet date.

The Company monitors loans and finance lease liabilities according to their creditors, loan
agreements, principal terms, remaining terms and original currencies. '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they qualify the conditions to be capitalized in accordance with
Accounting Standard “Borrowing costs”.

Borrowing costs associated with a particular borrowing for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset
shall be capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. For general borrowing funds, the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization in the period shall be determined according to the capitalization rate, which
is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the period.

Capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspended during extended periods in which it suspends
active development of a qualifying asset, except to the extent that the suspension is necessary.
Capitalization shall be ceased when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Owners’ equity

Paid-in capital represents the amount of capital actually contributed by shareholders.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are the amounts payable to repurchase the shares that the Company has issued and all
costs directly related to this repurchase transaction.

Profit distribution

Profit after corporate income tax is appropriated to funds and distributed to shareholders in
accordance with the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Dividends to be paid to shareholders shall not exceed the undistributed profit after tax and with

consideration of non-monetary items in undistributed post-tax profits that may impact cash flow and
the ability to pay dividends.

4.13 Recognition of revenue and other income

® Revenue from sales and service provision is recognized to the extent that it is probable to obtain
economic benefits, it can be reliably measured and the following conditions are also met:

v" Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the income statement when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer and there are no significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the likely return of goods.

v" Revenue from service provision is recognized when the services have been rendered. In case
that the services are to be provided in many accounting periods, the determination of revenue
in each period is done on the basis of the service completion rate as of the balance sheet date.

* Revenue from financing activities is recognized when revenue is determined with relative certainty
and it is possible to obtain economic benefits from the transactions.

v’ Interest is recognized on the basis of the actual term and interest rates;

v Dividends and profits shared are recognized when the Company has the right to receive them
from its capital contribution. Stock dividends are not recognized as financial revenue.
Dividends received for periods before the investment date are recorded as a decrease in value
of investment. ‘

*  Other income is the income derived out of the Company’s scope of business and recognized when
it can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company.

4.14 Revenue deductions

Revenue deductions at the Company arise from sales returns.

In case where revenue is recognized in during the year but the corresponding revenue deductions arise
after the balance sheet date, revenue shall be decreased in accordance with the following principles:

* If the corresponding deductions arise before the date of releasing the financial statements, they
shall be charged against revenue of the reporting year;

¢ If the corresponding revenue deductions arise after the date of releasing the financial statements,
they shall be charged against revenue of the next reporting year.

4.15 Cost of goods sold

Cost of products, goods sold and services rendered shall be recognized in the correct accounting
period in accordance with the matching principle and conservatism principle.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

Costs of inventories and services rendered which are incurred in excess of the ordinary level shall be
charged out to cost of goods sold in the period, not to the production cost of goods and services.

4.16 Financial expenses

Financial expenses reflect expenses or losses related to financial investment activities. The Company’s
financial expenses include interest expenses, payment discounts for buyers, provisions for devaluation
of trading securities, and provisions for investment losses in other entities.

4.17 Selling expenses, administrative expenses
Selling éxpenses recognized in the period are expenses actually incurred in the process of selling
products, goods, and rendering services.
Administrative expenses recognized are expenses actually incurred related to the overall
administration of the Company.

4.18 Current corporate income tax expense

Current income tax is the tax amount computed based on the taxable income in the period at the tax
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The difference between taxable income and accounting profit is
due to the adjustments of temporary differences between tax and accounting figures as well as those
of non-taxable or non-deductible income and expenses.

4.19 Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is recognized initially at cost plus transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The Company’s financial assets comprise cash on hand, deposits, financial
investments, trade receivables, and other receivables.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is recognized initially at cost plus transaction costs directly attributable to the
issuance of such liability. The Company’s financial liabilities comprise trade payables, accrued
expenses, and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
Currently, there has been no requirement for subsequent measurement of financial instruments.
4.20 Applicable tax rates and charges payable to the State Budget

e Value-added tax (VAT):
v" Textbooks and supplementary books for textbooks: Exempt from VAT;

v’ Reference books (not supplementary to textbooks) and educational equipment: Subject to a 5%
VAT rate;

v Calendars and stationery: Subject to a 10% VAT rate. From 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024, these
products were subject to an 8% VAT rate in accordance with Resolution 110/2023/QH15 (dated
29/11/2023) and Resolution 142/2024/QH15 (dated 29/06/2024) by the National Assembly.

e Corporate income tax (CIT): CIT is applied at a rate of 20%.

o Other taxes and obligations are fulfilled in accordance with the prévailing regulations.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

4.21 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to (directly or indirectly) control the

other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
decisions.

Currency.: VND
5. Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cash on hand 285,584,525 171,929,777
Bank demand deposits 1,918,149,015 6,490,186,314
Term deposits within 3 months 66,000,000,000 47,100,000,000

Total 68,203,733.540 53,762,116,091

6. Financial investments

a. Trading securities

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cost Fair value Provision Cost Fair value Provision
Listed shares (*)
- Book & Education Equipment JSC of HCMC
(§TC) 408,545,000 255,000,000 153,545,000 408,545,000 288,000,000 120,545,000
- Educational Book JSC In Da Nang City (DAE) 3,828,600,000 5,258,250,000 - 3,828,600,000 4,428,000,000 -
Total 4,237,145,000 5,513,250,000 153,545,000 4,237,145,000 4,716,000,000 120,545,000

(*) Trading securities are revaluated at the lower of cost and market value. For listed securities on stock
exchanges, the market value is determined based on the closing price at the balance sheet date.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial Statements)

7. Trade receivables

a. Short-term

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Quang Binh Book and Educational Equipment JSC 4,574,341,299 2,459,565,747
Quang Ngai Book and Equipment JSC 9,465,543,864 11,564,281,169
Phu Yen Book and School Equipment JSC 4,256,662,122 3,343,911,240

Other customers 13,009,599,998 20,048,936,669
Total 31,306,147.283 37,416,694.825
b. Trade receivables from related parties
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Quang Tri Book and School Equipment JSC 2,958,866,393 4,014,276,250
Binh Dinh Book and Equipment JSC 292,454,775 17,492,345
8. Short-term prepayments to suppliers
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Nguyen Nam Hai Fire Protection Trading and Service Co., Ltd 869,096,632 869,096,632
Other suppliers 561,173,972 416,572,872
Total 1.430,270,604 1,285,669,504
9. Other short-term receivables
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
Advances 884,784,807 : - 879,613,852 -
Other receivables 253,454,795 - 1,032,767,029 -
- Accrued interest income 253,454,795 - 434,161,644 -
- Others - - 598,605,385 -
Total 1,138,239,602 - 1,912,380,881 -
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial Statements)

10. Provision for doubtful short-term debts

Year 2024 Year 2023
Opening balance 1,230,063,637 1,275,700,678
Provision made during the year 77,464,784 2,023,819
Reversal of provision during the year 315,949,654 47,660,860
Closing balance 991,578,767 1,230,063,637
Bad debts:
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost value Cost value
Total value of receivables that are overdue
or not yet due but unlikely to be recovered
Continental Events Co., Ltd - - 13,363,080 9,354,156
Anh Phuong Bookstore - - 12,990,080 6,495,040
Viet Ly Bookstore - - 207,896,552 -
GiaLai CTC JSC 121,138,111 - 121,138,111 -
Thanh Phat Trading and Service Book - 271,850,175 - 271,850,175 -
Educational Equipment Co., Ltd_
ISC 116,828,262 58,414,131 196,828,262 137,779,783
Other debtors 587,937,522 47,761,172 559,626,356 -
Total 1,097,754,070 106,175,303 1,383,692.616 153,628,979
11. Inventories
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cost Provision ' Cost Provision
Materials 2,577,882,610 - 4,225,800,416 -
Work in progress 5,836,332,624 - 12,606,273,370 -
Finished goods 6,900,482,945 4,712,073,315 6,755,833,347 5,016,463,577
Merchandise goods 19,964,903,033 8,870,398,404 16,153,380,465 7,617,680,840
Total 35.279.601,212 13,582.471,719 39,741,287,598 12,634,144.417
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

12. Prepaid expenses

a. Short-term

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Non-deductible input value-added tax pending allocation 978,684,935 1,781,404,075
Other short-term prepaid expenses - 161,176,559
Total 978,684,935 1,942,580,634

b. Long-term

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Land lease expenses in Hoa Cam Industrial Park (*) 167,242,768 236,446,684
Cloud server service fees 121,500,000 -
Total 288,742,768 236,446,684

(*) The Company has acquired the land lease rights at Hoa Cam Industrial Park from Hoa Phat Educational
Book Printing Joint Stock Company under a transfer agreement dated 04/09/2009. Accordingly, the lease term
will expire on 22/05/2027.

13. Tangible fixed assets

Buildings, Motor vehicles, Office Total

architectures transmission equip. equipment
Cost
Opening balance 15,653,606,733 5,877,228,182 672,164,682 22,202,999,597
New purchases - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Closing balance 15,653,606,733 5,877,228,182 672,164,682 22,202,999,597
Depreciation
Opening balance 8,584,457,320 2,789,987,408 651,216,683 12,025,661,411
Charge for the year 754,076,360 932,518,000 13,968,000 1,700,562,360
Disposals - - - ~ -
Closing balance 9,338,533,680 3,722,505,408 665,184,683 13,726,223,771
Net book value
Opening balance 7,069,149,413 3,087,240,774 20,947,999 10,177,338,186
Closing balance 6,315,073,053 2,154,722,774 6,979,999 8,476,775,826

Cost of tangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in active use as at 31/12/2024 is VND2,771,918,724.

No tangible fixed assets were pledged as collateral for borrowings as at 31/12/2024.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

o FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— 145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

_ (These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

14. Intangible fixed assets

Land use  Other intangible Total
— rights fixed assets
R Cost
- Opening balance 7,799,999,000 365,000,000 8,164,999,000
o New purchases - - -
. Disposals - - -
Closing balance 7,799,999,000 365,000,000 8,164,999,000
Amortization
— Opening balance - 288,483,000 288,483,000
Charge for the year 47,352,000 47,352,000
T Disposals - -
- Closing balance 335,835,000 335,835,000
. Net book value
Opening balance 7,799,999,000 76,517,000 7,876,516,000
— Closing balance 7,799,999,000 29,165,000 7,829,164,000

* The intangible fixed asset is a long-term land use right with a cost of VNID7,799,999,000 at 145-147 Le Loi
Street, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, which is currently used as the Company's head office.

¢ Cost-of intangible fixed assets fully amortized but still in active use as at 31/12/2024 is VND315,000,000.

15. Trade payables

a. Short-term

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

Education Publishing House in Da Nang City
Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC
Other suppliers

18,468,707,285
3,627,492,634
4,138,671,633

22,584,017,348
2,388,199,446
3,357,129,687

Total 26,234,871,552 28,329,346,481
b. Trade payables to related parties

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Viet Nam Education Publishing House Ltd 49,090,909 106,300,000
Education Publishing House in Da Nang City 18,468,707,285 22,584,017,348
Book and Educational Equipment JSC of Ho Chi Minh City 1,463,819,145 566,495,743
Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC 3,627,492,634 2,388,199,446
South Books and Educational Equipment JSC 126,021,050 53,046,860
Educational Book JSC in Da Nang City 23,368,840 -
Educational Book JSC in Ha Noi City 398,299,500 221,745,500
Educational Book Distribution JSC 138,871,800 230,889,410
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/1 2/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

16. Advances from customers

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Crown Worldwide Ltd 316,800,000 316,800,000
Viet Nam Education Publishing House Ltd (related party) 920,548,490 -
Lam Dat Transport Service JSC 183,540,990 146,526,825
Other customers 37,698,986 102,079,664
Total 1,458,588,466 565,406,489
17. Taxes and amounts payable to the State Budget
Opening Amount to be  Actual amount Closing
balance paid paid balance
Value-added tax 202,662,406 896,314,597 1,005,968,727 93,008,276
Corporate income tax 674,627,091 4,111,292,898 4,292,776,680 493,143,309
Personal income tax 705,824,086 1,436,036,296 1,644,426,052 497,434,330
Other taxes - 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Total 1,583,113,583 6,446,643,791 6,946,171,459 1,083,585.915

The Company’s tax returns would be subject to inspection by the tax authorities. The tax amounts reported in
these financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

18. Short-term accrued expenses

31/12/2024

01/01/2024

Publishing management fees, manuscript organization fees, and

royalties payable to Ha Noi Education Development and
Investment JSC (related party)

30,914,155,160

30,260,971,870

Total 30,914,155,160 30,260,971.870
19. Other short-term payables

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Dividends and profits payable to owners 320,000 320,000

Other payables 17,519,650 25,620,869

Total 17,839,650 25,940,869
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

20. Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities

Opening balance Increases Decreases  Closing balance

VietinBank - North Da Nang Branch - 85,107,954,225  85,107,954,225 -

Total - 85,107.954,225 __ 85,107,954,225 -

-

21. Owners’ equity

a. Statement of changes in owners’ equity

Development and  Undistributed profit
Share capital Treasury shares investment fund after tax
As at 01/01/2023 50,000,000,000 (2,907,360,967) 9,223,769,290 38,139,031,840
Increases - - 705,796,942 14,115,938,843
Decreases - - . - 11,223,581,652
As at 31/12/2023 50,000,000,000 (2,907,360,967) 9,929,566,232 41,031,389,031
As at 01/01/2024 50,000,000,000 2,907,360,967) 9,929,566,232 41,031,389,031
Increases - - 570,030,182 11,400,603,629
Decreases - - - 12,738,581,088
As at 31/12/2024 50,000,000,000 (2,907,360,967) _ 10,499,596.414 39,693,411,572
b. Breakdown of share capital
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Viet Nam Education Publishing House Ltd 20,750,000,000 20,750,000,000
Other shareholders 25,842,000,000 25,842,000,000
Par value of treasury shares 3,408,000,000 3,408,000,000
Total 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
)
¢. Shares
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Shares Shares
Number of shares authorized for issuance 5,000,000 5,000,000
Number of shares sold to the public 5,000,000 5,000,000
- Common shares 5,000,000 5,000,000
- Preferred shares (classified as equity) - -
Number of shares repurchased (treasury shares) 340,800 340,800
- Common shares 340,800 340,800
- Preferred shares (classified as equity) - -
Number of shares outstanding 4,659,200 4,659,200
- Common shares 4,659,200 4,659,200

- Preferred shares (classified as equity)
Par value of outstanding shares: VND10,000 each

Page 22



NP

DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAZ STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

d. Undistributed profit after tax

Year 2024

Year 2023

Profit brought forward

Profit after corporate income tax

Profit distribution (*)

Distribution of prior year's profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders

Interim distribution of current year's profit

- Development and investment fund (5%)

- Reward and welfare fund

- Remuneration for Board of Directors and Supervisory Board (5%

Undistributed profit after tax

41,031,389,031
11,400,603,629
12,738,581,088

38,139,031,840
14,115,938,843
11,223,581,652

9,318,400,000 6,988,800,000
9,318,400,000 6,988,800,000
3,420,181,088 4,234,781,652
570,030,182 705,796,942
2,280,120,724 2,823,187,768
570,030,182 705,796,942
39,693,411,572 41,031,389,031

(*) The Company distributes the profit after tax for 2023 and temporarily distributes the after-tax profit for
2024 in accordance with Resolution No. 16/NQ-DEIDCO-PHPCP dated 24/04/2024 of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

e. Dividends

Resolution No. 16/NQ-DEIDCO-DHDCD dated 24/04/2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders approved the dividend payment plan from the 2023 profit after tax in cash at a rate of 15% of
charter capital (equivalent to VND6,988,800,000) and an additional dividend payment of 5% of charter
capital (equivalent to VND2,329,600,000) from the retained earnings of previous years. Accordingly, the
Company finalized the list of shareholders on 08/01/2024 and 28/05/2024 and has completed the dividend
payments within the year.

22. Revenue from sales and service provision

Year 2024 Year 2023
Total revenue 515,447,587,688 472,121,629,007
+ Revenue from supplementary books and textbooks 490,824,103,432 447,211,134,624
+ Revenue from reference books 16,946,366,406 15,926,156,879
+ Revenue from other activities 7,677,117,850 8,984,337 504
Total 515.,447,587,688 472,121,629,007
23. Revenue deductions

Year 2024 Year 2023
Sales returns 15,441,715,752 32,311,744,546
+ Sales returns of supplementary books and textbooks 15,005,675,685 30,592,530,115
+ Sales returns of reference books 392,740,200 1,655,505,046
+ Other sales returns 43,299 867 63,709,385
Total 15,441,715,752 32,311,744,546
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

24. Cost of goods sold

Year 2024 Year 2023
Cost of goods sold 420,265,090,466 368,870,302,484
+ Cost of supplementary books and textbooks 401,340,405,147 352,428,601,017
+ Cost of reference books ' 12,983,942,11]1 10,023,270,495
+ Cost of other activities 5,940,743,208 6,418,430,972
(Reversal of) Provision for decline in value of inventories 948,327,302 (10,301,223,423)
Total 421,213,417,768 358.569,079,061
25. Financial income
Year 2024 Year 2023
Interest income from deposits and loans 767,649,717 1,968,123,202

Interest on credit sales, payment discounts

2,785,773,010

699,950,000

Dividends and profits received 1,015,060,000
Total 4,568.482,727 2,668.073.202
26. Financial expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023
Interest expenses 440,180,450 374,976, 134
Early payment discount 698,585,887 1,134,375,218
(Reversal of) Provision for devaluation of trading securities and 33,000,000 (36,000,000)
investment losses
Other financial expenses 122,083,290 -
Total 1,293,849,627 1,473,351,352
27. Selling expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023

Transportation, loading and unloading expenses
Sales staff costs

Other expenses

- Depreciation expenses

- Transaction, conference, and hospitality expenses

- Advertising, book promotion, and training expenses
- Others

Total

10,183,607,393
9,993,133,257
24,856,758,446
351,379,360
9,596,466,774
12,587,286,993
2,321,625,319

8,207,150,078
9,975,702,171
21,966,843,896
452,100,002
6,869,133,658
12,906,594,282
1,739,015,954

45,033,499,096

40,149,696,145
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

28. Administrative expenses

Year 2024

Year 2023

Transaction, conference, and hospitality expenses
Management staff costs
Other expenses

3,549,503,877
9,993,514,645
7,876,693,975

5,009,659,238
9,976,743,875
9,141,161,238

- Depreciation expenses 1,396,535,000 1,395,279,000
- (Reversal of) Provision for doubtful debts (238,484,870) (45,637,041)
- Others 6,718,643,845 7,791,519,279
Total 21,419,712,497 24,127,564,351
29. Other income
Year 2024 Year 2023
Gains from disposal of fixed assets - 365,000,000
Other income 3,150,350 55,001
Total 3,150,350 365,055,001
30. Other expenses
Year 2024 Year 2023
Tax arrears and penalties 105,128,707 -
Other expenses 791 -
Total 105,129,498 -
31. Current corporate income tax expense
Year 2024 Year 2023

Total accounting profit before tax

Adjustments for taxable income

Incremental adjustments

- Administrative fines and tax arrears

- Non-deductible expenses

Decremental adjustments (Dividends and profits received)
Total taxable income

Current corporate income tax expense

Including:

- Current corporate income tax expense for the year

- Adjustment of prior year's current corporate income tax expense
recorded in the current year

15,511,896,527
4,531,407,551
5,546,467,551

18,523,321,755
3,513,592,805
4,213,542,805

105,128,707 -
5,441,338,844 4,213,542,805
1,015,060,000 699,950,000

. 20,043,304,078 22,036,914,560
4,111,292,898 4,407,382.912
4,008,660,816 4,407,382,912
102,632,082 -
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

32. Basic/diluted earnings per share

Year 2024 Year 2023
Profit after corporate income tax 11,400,603,629 14,115,938,843
Incremental or decremental adjustments to profit after tax (2,850,150,906) (3,528,984,710)
- Incremental adjustments - -
- Decrease adjustments (Allocations to reward and welfare fund, 2,850,150,906 3,528,984,710
remuneration for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board)
Profit or loss attributable to common shareholders 8,550,452,723 10,586,954,133
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during 4,659,200 4,659,200
the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share 1,835 2,272
33. Operating expenses by element
Year 2024 Year 2023
Materials expenses 14,175,520,483 18,170,752,593
Labor costs 19,986,647,902 19,952,446,046
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,747,914,360 1,847,379,002
Outsourced service expenses 75,715,823,291 64,739,592,446
Other cash expenses 30,835,676,442 29,954,795,775
Total 142,461,582.,478 134.664,965.862

34.

35.

Segment reporting

According to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 and the relevant guidelines, the Company is
required to have segment reporting. Accordingly, a business segment is a distinguishable component of
the Company that is engaged in providing related products or service (business segment) or providing
goods or services in a specific economic environment (segment by geographical area) and that is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segment.

Based on the Company’s actual operations, the Management assesses that business segments and
segments by geographical area have no differences in bearing risks and obtaining returns. Accordingly,
the Company operates in a sole business segment, i.e., book publishing, and its main geographical
segment is the Central provinces of Vietnam.

Risk management

a. Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

b. Financial risk management

Financial risks include market risk (including interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, commodity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

Market risk management: The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in interest rates and commodity prices.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk primarily relates to
short-term deposits and outstanding borrowings. To mitigate this risk, the Company analyzes market
competition to make interest rate decisions that align with its objectives while keeping risk at an
acceptable level. The Company also estimates the impact of interest expenses on its periodic business
results as well as making analysis and projection to select appropriate time to repay the loans. The
Management assesses that uncontrollable risks arising from fluctuations of interest rates are low.

Price risk management

The Company procures goods, raw materials, and outsourced printing services from domestic suppliers
to serve its operating activities, thereby exposing itself to the risk of input price fluctuations. Its
suppliers primarily include the Education Publishing House and its member companies. Given the
nature of the education sector, input prices remain stable with minimal fluctuations. As a result, the
Company assesses that price risk in its operating activities is low.

Credit risk management

The Company’s traditional customers primarily consist of book and educational equipment companies
In various provinces, with whom it conducts frequent transactions. Given their timely payment history,
the Company does not face significant credit risk from this customer group. For agent customers, some
overdue receivables exist. The Company mitigates this risk by strengthening debt collection measures
and making provisions for doubtful debts.

Liquidity risk management

To ensure the availability of funds to meet present and future financial obligations, the Company
manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring and maintaining sufficient cash reserve, optimizing cash
flows, making use of credit from customers and counterparties, controlling maturing liabilities in
relative to maturing assets and the amount of funds that can be generated within that period.

The Company’s aggregate financial liabilities are categorized in line with their maturity as follows:

31/12/2024 ‘Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
Trade payables 26,234,871,552 - 26,234,871,552
Accrued expenses 30,914,155,160 - 30,914,155,160
Other payables 17,839,650 - 17,839,650
Total 57,166,866,362 - 57,166,866,362
01/01/2024 Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
Trade payables 28,329,346,481 - 28,329,346,481
Accrued expenses 30,260,971,870 - 30,260,971,870
Other payables 15,455,741 - 15,455,741
Total 58,605,774,092 - 58,605,774,092
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

The Management assumes that the Company has no exposure to liquidity risk and believes that it can
generate sufficient resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company’s available financial assets are drawn up on a net asset basis as follows:

31/12/2024

Within 1 year

Over 1 year

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Total

01/01/2024

68,203,733,540

1,350,000,000

68,203,733,540

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments
Trade receivables

16,083,600,000 17,433,600,000
30,314,568,516 - 30,314,568,516
253,454,795 - 253,454,795
114,855,356,851 1,350,000,000 116,205,356,851
Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
53,762,116,091 - 53,762,116,091
19,116,600,000 1,350,000,000 20,466,600,000

36,186,631,188

36,186,631,188

Other receivables 1,032,767,029 - 1,032,767,029
Total 110,098,114,308 1,350,000,000 111,448,114,308
36. Related party disclosures
a. Related parties
Relationship
Viet Nam Education Publishing House Ltd Investor
Binh Dinh Book and Equipment JSC Associate

Education Publishing House in Da Nang City

Book and Educational Equipment JSC of Ho Chi Minh City
Ha Noi Education Development and Investment JSC
Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC
Education Publishing and Investment JSC

Ha Noi Education Publishing Services JSC

South Books and Educational Equipment JSC

Educational Book JSC in Da Nang City

Educational Book JSC in Ha Noi City Having the same investor
Educational Book Distribution JSC Having the same investor
Quang Nam Printing - Distribution of Books and School Equipment J¢ Having the same investor
Quang Tri Book and School Equipment JSC Having the same investor
Central Books and Educational Equipment JSC Having the same investor

Dependent entity of investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
Having the same investor
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)-

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

b. Significant transactions with related parties during the year

Purchase of goods Year 2024 Year 2023
Education Publishing House in Da Nang City 274,982,787,855  238,624,445,448
Book and Educational Equipment JSC of Ho Chi Minh City 3,744,277,661 5,467,372,846
Ha Noi Education Publishing Services JSC 150,000,000 1,169,695,248
Quang Nam Printing - Distribution of Books and School Equipment J¢ 1,444,326,614 2,318,014,743
Educational Book JSC in Da Nang City 672,903,300 2,151,174,736
Education Publishing and Investment JSC 302,063,580 376,027,579
Educational Book JSC in Ha Noi City 5,609,833,900 3,837,278,500
Ha Noi Education Development and Investment JSC 37,786,367,471 30,949,768,439
Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC 11,469,894,569 11,351,017,244
Central Books and Educational Equipment JSC 56,435,730 56,435,730
Binh Dinh Book and Equipment JSC 1,038,729,275. -
Sale of goods Year 2024 Year 2023
Binh Dinh Book and Equipment JSC 9,209,761,877 7,507,052,070

Quang Nam Printing - Distribution of Books and School Equipment J¢
Quang Tri Book and School Equipment JSC

Educatjonal Book JSC in Da Nang City

Educational Book JSC in Ha Noi City

Ha Noi Education Development and Investment JSC

Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC

2,918,237
29,550,345,801
357,164,760
999,189,716
1,672,356,497
1,589,350,285

32,404,530,152
514,086,248
105,145,267
815,226,370
1,417,568,307

Central Books and Educational Equipment JSC 898,222,015 1,050,563,902
¢. Remuneration and salaries of key management personnel

Year 2024 Year 2023
Board of Directors’' Remuneration 156,000,000 156,000,000
Mr. Dang Thanh Hai Chairman 48,000,000 48,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Quang Dung Member 36,000,000 36,000,000
Mr. Ong Thua Phu Member 24,000,000 24,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Le Van Member 24,000,000 24,000,000
Mr. Huynh Ngoc Bao Member (from 24/03/2023) 24,000,000 18,000,000
Ms. Le Ngoc Member (until 24/03/2023) - 6,000,000
Supervisory Board's Remuneration 30,000,000 30,000,000
Salaries of Management, Chief Accountant 2,847,929,248 2,565,342,870

37. Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would require

adjustments or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.
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DANANG EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
145 Le Loi Street, Hai Chau Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City For the year ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

(These notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

38. Corresponding figures

| sponding figures were taken from the financial statements for the year ended 31/12/2023, which

qudited by

‘ ¥ Quang Dung “Le Ngoc Le Thi Dieu Hien
General Director Chief Accountant Preparer
Da Nang, 10 March 2025

Page 30



		2025-03-21T15:11:26+0700
	CÔNG TY CỔ PHẦN ĐẦU TƯ VÀ PHÁT TRIỂN GIÁO DỤC ĐÀ NẴNG




